ANNUAL
REPORT

SAIGON PASSENGER TRANSPORT

CONG TY CO PHAN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

XE KHACH SAI GON
@ 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Ho Chi Minh City

® 02838546 110

@ http://www.saigonbus.com.vn

~cfMa,



CHAPTER I
GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT SAIGONBUS

CHAPTER II
OPERATING SITUATION IN 2024

CHAPTER III
REPORT AND EVALUATION OF THE
EXECUTIVE BOARD

CHAPTER IV
EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAPTER V
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CHAPTER VI
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Annual Report 2024 Eage

CHAPTER 1
GENERAL INFORMATION
ABOUT SAIGON BUS

A
E General Information 2 Formation and Development Process

) ) . Information on Governance Model,
3 Business Lines and Operating

Locations

Business Organization and

Management Model

% Development Orientation @ Risks




Company Mame
(Vietnamese)

CONG TY €O PHAN XE KHACH SAI GON

Company Name
(English)

SATGOM PASSENGER TRANSPORT JOINT STOCK COMFPANY

Head Office

39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong Street, Ward 11, District 5, Ho Chi Minh City,
Vietnam

Telephone

028 38 546 110

Business Registration
Certilicate Number

0300478044 issued by the Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning
and Investment, [irst issued on April 21, 2006, 15th amendment on
January 13, 2025,

Charter Capital

500,000.000.000 VND (Six hundred billion Vietnamese Dong)

Website

bt /hwww saizonbus.com.vn
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FORMATION AND DEVELOPMENT PROCESS

1983

The company was
assigned to manage
buses and tasked
with providing o—=@
public passenger
transportation
services by bus.

1976

The predecessor was
aTourism Company
with the mission of
transporting officials

on business trips.

1997

The company was
transformed into a
state-owned public
utility enterprise, with
its main task being
public passenger
transportation by bus.

I

2004

The company became a
member of Saigon
Transportation
Mechanical Corporation
(SAMCO) under the
parent company —
subsidiary model

o

2016 - PRESENT

The company
officially
transformed into a
joint-stock company
with a charter
capital of 600 billion
VND.

2006

The Company was
renamed Saigon
Passenger Transport
Co.. Lud
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BUSINESS LINES e
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Main Business Lines of the Company: Public passenger transportation services

by car; Shuttle services for employees, workers, students, and pupils; Passenger
transportation services under contract, on fixed routes; Fuel dealership; Driver

training; Vehicle repair and maintenance services

OPERATING LOCATIONS: Ho Chi Minh City, Hanoi City, and neighboring

29

provinces



ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

1.General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS): The highest authority of the
Company.

2.Board of Supervisors (BOS): 3 members, including: 1 Head of the BOS and
2 supervisors.

3.Board of Directors (BOD): 7 members, including: 1 Chairman of the BOD
and 6 members of the BOD.

4. Management Board: 5 members, including: 1 General Director, 3 Deputy
General Directors, and 1 Chief Accountant.

5.The company has no subsidiaries or affiliates.

GENERAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS
| SUPERVISORY BOARD
o
l BOARD OF DIRECTORS |
| GENERAL DIRECTOR |
DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR
(Nguyen Tuan Viet) (Nguyen Ho Minh) (Nim Vuon Phu)
i \ i Al
Automobile || SaigonBus || TanBinh || Organization- Finance - Bus Transpaortation Gemeral
Repair Vocational Driving Administration Accounting | | Transporation and Tourism Department
Service Training Test Departm ent Department Enterprise Service
Enterprise Center Center Enterpnse
W
W W L
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Coordination Departm ent Offices
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e Continuously maintain, strengthen, and secure the
company's main market share in the core business of public
passenger transportation by bus. Simultaneously, enhance
the business efficiency of service activities to support the
primary business operations.

e Leveraging the brand strength and achievements of nearly
50 years of operation, Saigon Passenger Transport Joint
Stock Company is determined to uphold its core values,
continue to develop, solidify its brand, and maintain its
market share in the transportation sector. It also aims to
expand supporting commercial service activities and build a
friendly and efficient working environment for employees.

Senving Customers, ensuring criteria
of safety, punctualitys friendliness

and luxnry,

DEVELOPMENT
ORIENTATION

To become a leading enterprise
in the field of public passenger
transportation.

1\ g

VISION

Prioritizing development, completion, and improvement,
along with the application of new technologies to reduce
environmental pollution from vehicle emissions, the
Company has invested in vehicles using clean CNG fucl to
replace diesel fuel, thereby minimizing environmental
impact.

Strictly abiding by the law regarding the inspection and
monitoring of the impact of business activities on the
environment.
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RISKS

fiv 2024, the global egonpmy coniinues 1o {ace nunierous chillenges
jincd opportunities: Despite positive siEns (eamrsonio: major economies,
the yeralls picture remiing volafle andunpiedictable, Global
inflatonary pressures are showine signs of easing thanks (o (sl
monetary policies by centeal Banks: Geopolitical (ensions, particularly
the Rissin-Ukraine cunfllet, conlinue’ o eduse globil feconomis
[nstatility, driving up encrey aid food prices;

Despite: el affecled By the complex Alucludlions: of e global
economy, Mietoam hos achivved significant decomplishmenls;The
aovernment Has fniplemented miny effective’ measures (o control
infintian, contobuting (0 narket stbility iod prolecting peopleslives:
{nereasing attention s being paid to sustainable developnient. with
action pregrams con - gnvironmentalt protection) climiale” change
yesponse, wand renswible ‘energy development. Global econoniic
fuetudtions, espedially fade (ensions add' peopolitical conflicts:
repnain ma{or ks for the Viginamess eeanuny.

Ho €hi Minh Cily's sovio-ceonomie situation in 2024 fins imany
fositive signs, with key esonomic sectors recording positive growih;
aspecially the seryice Sector (The eity is focusing on investing (n*key
{ransportation, projects 1o fmprove transporation cupacity: and reduce
copgestionzinvesting in upgradingthe bus systam, neouraging people
to use public transportation, At the snme time; 2034 marks u
significant tuening point in the Tecovery o the: travel and fourisnt
fndustry. With ‘complets reopaning: and eHeetive (oursm stimulus
policies, the toursm industry hos. Witnessed strong growth and
nelieved significant resulls.

The company confinues (o elosaly monitor (e market situation,
striving (o pridetively implemint synchrenous solutions to gtihilize
and develop productionand-business:

Fugl isithe companyls pHiminy eisrgy Solirce for possenger transpor

oparatiuns, Th 2024 fuel pricesimay fluciuae sharplydic (o virious
fitiors such as geopalitical Sllvations, global supply and dempntd, and
policies ot oil-produsing countriess Thiss poses - difftenities: (o7 the
compiny: inloretisting cosis and planning BUsiness opertions]

When fuel prices inérense, Vehidle Gperatineeosls also nse, reducing
the company s profiis!

Thie inerease intpersonnl motoreyeles and cars his ledmany peaple o
thaose (o trayel by privaieyehisles instead of busesilhe development
created new compalitiondn’ the passenges
transport industey, Gltmeting w targe mumbels of consumans with
promations and advertising, Iy addition; there are other transporiation
geryvice. providers, puiting pressire on the Company. The Comprny

ol ricle-hailing services b

sk always develop: plans tndvisions for the futuje; espieially
developing the Campany's core husiness todncreases revenue, planning
for the nparadeol vehicles and insvehicle amenilies o improve: the

eHfeiency nf route operations,

Risks such as wiir, fite, natual disasters, ¢pldemics, and changes in
legnl - regulations are also amang: the risks that seriously uffect the
Company's praduction: operdtions. Alfioughithese risks hnve a dow
frequency of accumence, (hiy: cAuse ve
personmel a8 well s company assels. To minimize losses when force
majeare: risks ocodr, the Gompany has tontingency plans steh as;
ingtatling fire alarm and fire Gehting sysems developing contingancy

plans (o deal with unes pecied stuttionss

[nrge Insses in enns of

SaigonBus's prodigiion and Eusiiess opsrations are subject to the reguliions
ol the Vietnamese lepal system, such as the Boerprise: Laws Investiment Law,
andi'tux policies, Tn additdon, @s o large-scale publictcampiny, SaigonBus is
algo affedted by the [eaal frimework of the Vienamese Sioek Markel: Busides
the genoeral fepal framewnek. SaizonBus §s5ls0 - govermned by Industiy-specitic
regulitions and sanctions such® as the Law an Traffic Order and: Soiely.
Currently, some laws, sanetions, ol policies aretbeipg rengwed, sob 1he
Company regularly Updites Tegal docunments o pramptly forecast and halp tho
Company. operate in complianceswith (gl egulations:

and'beantiful environment, rediee

emissions, andimplement the (ranspartition’ sgelnrs Aeton propran o green
B g

Tocontribute 10 the cause of @ oreen; cl

enerey transition, cafbon md methane amission reduction, the Companyhis
upgraded (o) NG buses, elsetric” huses, and improved service quality (o
encotiraga people o limit=the use ol private vehicles,  ensamng: that
environmonial emission reduction is contolled:

SaizonBus always focuses' on dmproving: and enlaneing service o maintsin
close relationships with customiers, ensuripg customer Salisfnetion with the
company’s atalBservice SThe compiny; alwiys creates conditions for employess
{0 access conrses an communication, calmness in work, and situation handlinge
when the sitaition tends tosbe negatives doousing ons the level ol securily on
euch trip, ensuring the safetrofpas
deployed. tlie instullation of Conyvenient fagilities sueh nst auamitic licket

5" persanal belopgings. SaigonBus haks

vending machines, announeement speakers, and cameras onwvahigles o impiove
service qualitys SaigonBus always £irives (o ullill thedmotio Y oursatisfaeion
= Qur pride”, In addition;
first, ensuring i safoand reliable service expetients fr very. custonien

gonH U5 §5 canmitted [0°puiting passengersalety
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
RESULTS IN 2024
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PERSONAL SITUATION

LABOR QUALIFICATION

Post-graduate 1%
University, College 9%
Intermediate 2%
Technical worker 0%
Unskilled labor 88%

TYPE OF LABOR CONTRACT
o Indefinite-term contract

o 1=3 vear fixed-term conltact
¢ Under l-year contract

GENDER

Female 24%

Male 76%




' BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAIRWOMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MEMBER OF BOD MEMBER OF BOD, GENERAL DIRECTOR MEMBER OE BOD, DEPUTY GENERAL
DIRECTOR

MEMBER OF BOD., DEPUTY GENERAL MENBER OF BOD MEMBER OF BOD
DIRECTOR {
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' BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHAIRWOMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MEMBER OF BOD MEMBER OF BOD, GENERAL DIRECTGR MEMBER OF BGD, DEPUTY GENERAL

DIRECTOR

MEMBER OEBOD, DERUTY GENERAL MEMBER OF BOL MEMBER QR BOD
DIRECTOR

Annual Report 2024 Page 11




Mr. NGUYEN QUOC SOAN

__\' QS ) B 6 7 ':L IL.JI '_.: )

gl 7 S0 U s § 1

Yeur of birth: 1957 _

Prolession] qualification; Bachelor of Accounting, Bachelor of Law

Work experience:

Mareh 1978 — Decemnber 1979: Upon graduating from the Finance Secondary School, was
nssigned by the Minisiry of Finance to Ho Chi Minh City to work on qurrency exchinge
in Ward 8, District 5. Ho Chi Minh City: After the eurvency exchange period, continued
1o work on commercial and material improvement mider the Improvement Team of the
Ministry of Finance.

1080 — 1986: Worked at the Industrial and Commereial Tax Department of the Ministry
of Binance.

1987 — 1990: Warked-at the Industrial and Commercial Tax Bureau of the Ministiy of
Finange.

1990 — 1996: Worked ut the General Department of Taxation in the southern provinces
under the Ministry of’ Finance.

1997 — December 2017: Worked at the General Department of Taxation in the southem
provinces, holding the position of Deputy Head of the Inspection Department of the
General Pepartment of Taxation.

January 2018 - Maveh 2018: Worked at New City Group Joint Stock Company.
September 4. 2018 — Present: Head of the Supervisory Board of Saigon Passenger
Transport Joint Stock Company. oL Lk

Mrs. TRAN KIM TUYEN

Myrs. NGUYEN THI TO NHU




GENERAL DIRECTOR

DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR DERPUTY GENERAL BIRECTOR

CHIEE ACCOUNTANT
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HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY

ON TRAINING ON THE WORKING ENVIRONMENT

ON RECRUITMENT

ON SALARIES, BONUSES,
BENEFITS AND INCENTIVES

1 the employee's qualilications,
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| INVESTMENT SITUATION AND
| PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION |

INVESTMENT IN TRANSPORTATION
VEHICLES

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES:
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- FINANCIAL

Business Performance Results in 2024

Key Fmancial Indicators

Profitabilify Indicators

Liquidity Indicators:

Capital Structure Indicators:
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" | SHARBHOLDING AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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Number of Shares

State Shareholders, Major Shareholders (> 5%):
- State Shareholders 29,400,000 49.00%

- Major Shareholders 27.927.400 46.55%
Other Shareholders (<5% 2.672.600 4.45%
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SUSTAINABILITY

REPORT




ENVIRONMENT

GOALS AND ACTIONS

Climate change, with phenomena such as
rising temperatures, sea level rise, ice melt,
changes in ocean currents, and extreme
weather events, is inereasingly threatening
human health, Recognizing the importance
of the environmenlt in sustainable
development, the Company always strictly
complies with legal regulations in its
business operations.

The Company adheres to the state's
environmental policy where il operates,
commilling to minimize environmental
impacts from its aclivities with the aim of
preventing pollution, complying with laws
and other reguirements, and striving for
environmental — improvement  activilics
within the company and for the entire

community.




" POLICIES RELATED TO EMPLOYEES

FOR CUSTOMERS AND THE COMMUNITY
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CHAPTER III
REPORT AND EVALUATION OF
THE EXECUTIVE BOARD
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EVALUATION OF 2024 BUSINESS
PERFORMANCE

In 2024, the Company's operations were affected
by several objective factors: fluctuating raw
material and fuel prices; public transportation
usage patterns and people's travel habits also
impacted customer volume and revenue.
Additionally, the increasing number of
competitors with strong financial capabilities
intensified competition among businesses in the
industry, affecting the Company's business
performance in terms of output, revenue, and
profit. Despite these difficulties, the Company
proactively implemented numerous synchronized
solutions to mitigate negative impacts on
production and business operations, exceeding
the profit target set by the General Meeting of
Shareholders, fulfilling all obligations to the state
budget, and ensuring the rights of shareholders
and employees.

In 2024, the Company's revenue reached 633,334
million VND, achieving 101.45% of the plan.
Profit before tax in 2024 reached 44,871 million
VND, fulfilling 114.36% of the plan. This is an
encouraging result in the wvolatile economic
context of 2024.
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Assets Situation
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FINANCIAL SITUATION oo
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Liabilities Situation

FINANCIAL SITUATION (Cont”)
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IMPROV]
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The company operates under a joint-stock
company model, with a more dynamic and
flexible management mechanism. The company's
management apparatus is  streamlined and
compact.

Clear tasks and responsibilities are defined for
each job position to avoid overlap and improve
work efficiency. Modern technologies such as
artificial intelligence, workflow automation, or
management software are applied to optimize
work performance.

Employees are provided with opportunities to
learn and develop new skills through training and
coaching programs. The organizational structure

is flexibly adjusted to respond quickly to market

changes and customer needs.
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Strongly applying information technology in
Building

thoroughly disseminating

management and administration.
corporate culture,
and promoting the company's mission, vision,
and core values to all employees and partners.
The restructuring of production and business
operations and the application of modern
technology in management and administration
are always highly supported and unanimously
agreed upon by the company's employees.
Developing cost-saving policies, detailed and
specific business plans to ensure the direction

is consistent with the resolutions set by the

Board of Directors.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

Outlook:

- Tn 2025, the global cconomy is projected to continue facing
numerous challenges. Factors such as geopolitical volatility,
climate change, and rapid technological advancements will
impact economic growth. However, experts also suggest that
with 1he strong recovery of trade and investment, the global
economy could achieve stable growth.

- With innovative thinking, high determination, great effor,
drastic action, breakthrough solutions, effective methods, and
timely, flexible, and efficient implementation, Vietnam will
make maximum efforts to create breakthroughs in attracting
investment, strongly promoting production and business, and
striving to achieve a growih rate of at least 8% or higher in
favorable conditions: thereby creating a solid foundation to
achieve double-digit growth [rom 2026,

- Ho Chi Minh Cily's economy is forecast to conlinue ils
recovery momentum thanks to the growth of the service,
industrial, and construction sectors. However, the city still faces
many internal chatlenges in transforming its growth model ©
enter a new era of high and sustainable prowth. The eity will
centinue lo attract foreign investment, shive to implement
environmental protection and sustainable development measures,
including reducing pollution and increasing the use of renewable
Cnergy.

Target for 2025

Revenue: 562,610 Million VND
Profit Before Tax: 16,369 Million VND

Godals

Work Strategy

[ i

Market

Annual Report 2024

Key Tasks:

- Proactively develop plans that align with the green cnergy bus
conversion project in Hanoi and Ho Chi Minh City to maintain and
expand market share in public passenger transportation operations.

- Expand business operations: bus stations, parking garages. vehicle
rental services, charging stations, clectric vehicle repair, and
automolive consignment sales agencies. Effectively utilize existing
lacilities.

- Promote the application of online platforms to maximize customer
reach, thereby expanding and developing vehicle rental services,
tonrism activities, and driver training and resting operations.

- Focus all resources on developing the company's branch business
operations in Hanoi.

- Invest in and modernize vehicles and renovate and repair facilities.
- Promote the delegation of authority to Directors and Heads of
subordinate units to foster autonomy and accountability in unit
operations. Review and refine the organizational structure towards
streamlining and efficiency; ensure human resources for production
and business activities; aceelerate the application of technological
advancements in management and operations.

- Complete legal documentation for the Company's land plots;
Review, amend, and supplement the Company's regulations and
rules.

Team
Operations

Page 26

g—



AUDIT OPINION

CPA Vietnam Auditing Company Limited has
audited the Financial Statements for the [iscal
year ended December 31, 2024, of Saigon
Passenger Transport Joint Stock Company and
issued the following opinion:

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial
Statements present [fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company
as of December 31, 2024, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Victnamese
Accounting  Standards, the Victnamese
Enterprise Accounting System, and the relevant
legal regulations on the preparation and

presentation of Financial Statements.

Annual Report 2024
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CHAPTER 1V
EVALUATION OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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ACHIEVEMENTS

Ensure stable cash flow for production and business
operations.

Bstablish a Company branch in Hanoi to develop bus
service operations, car rvental operations, and tourism
activities in the Northern provinees, with a focus on Hanoi.
Effectively seek and exploit customers for the Company's
service activities by strengthening marketing  efforts,
introducing services on online platforms, and improving
the Company's website and its affiliated units.

Replace the ticketing system (o facilitate the acceplance
process and align with the “cashless" trend, electronic
transportation ordets.

Change the new identity for vehicles, improve the quality
of the vehicle Meet 1o build the SaigonBus brand.

Renovate and upgrade facilities at the Company's business
locations.

Review, amend, supplement, and complete the Company’s
Labor Regulations, Collective Labor Agreement, and other
regulations and rules of the Company.

Regularly organize professional training classes for drivers
and bus service stalf Lo improve service quality.
Effectively carry out inspection and monitoring related to
occupational safety and health, fire prevention and
fighting, and security and order at the Company's business
locations.

The Company always pays attention to and fully and
properly implements the work of caring for employees on
holidays and Tel and the regimes of employees.

Page 29

Although the Company's business operalions have
recovered, its accumulated losses are slill significant,
posing a major challenge (o investing and expanding
service business aclivities to meel markel demands,

The majority of the Company's vehicles have been in
operation for over 5-10 years, leading t frequent
breakdowns that affect route operations and service
quality.

Reeruiting direct labor such as drivers and skilled workers
who meet the required qualifications is challenging due to
the increasing competition for recruitment  among
transportation units.

Issues related to the legal documents of the land areas
managed by the Company have not yet been resolved,
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS'
ASSESSMENT OF THE
GENERAL DIRECTOR'S
PERFORMANCE

Currently, 03/07 members of the Board of Direclors
participate in the Company's operations. The provision of

information and reports to non-executive members is

carried out regularly and fully, specifically:
e The General Direcltor has proactively assignc_r,s

delegaled tasks to the members of the Executive

A
in charge of specific arcas. In addition to the®

management role, the General Director has established
a collective working mechanism (o enable each
member of the Executive Board to fully develop their
expertise, capabilitics, and responsibilities  in
performing their duties, contributing to improving
work  productivity; managing the Company's
production and business operations in strict compliance
with legal regulations and the Company's Charter.

e The General Director regularly reports to the Board of
Directors on the financial situation, investment, and
production and business operations to date, as well as
the direction for the future, Lo allow the Board of
Directors Lo provide guidance.

e In gencral, the Company's Execcutive Board has
actively and proactively implemented and resolved
tasks with a high sense of responsibility, regularly
reporting on the Company's management and
administration, seeking guidance and direction [rom
the Board of Direcctors; explaining and disclosing
information about the Company's operations in a [ull,
transparent, and legally compliant manner; proactively
organizing production and business plans in accordance
with the actual situation based on the guidance ol the

Board of Directors.




PLANS AND ORIENTATIONS OF THE BOD

(==

- Proactively develop plans that align with the green energy bus conversion project in Hanoi and Ho Chi Minh City to
maintain and expand market share in public passenger transportation operations.

- Expand business operations: parking lots, garages, car rental services, charging stations, electric vehicle repair, and
dealership consignment for car sales. Eftectively utilize existing fucilities.

- Promote the application of online platforms to maximize customer reach, expand, and develop car rental services,
tourism activities, and driver training and testing.

_ Focus all resources on developing the business operations of the Company's branch in Hanoi.

- Invest in and renew vehicles and renovate and repair facilities.

- Promote the delegation of authority to Directors and Heads of affiliated units to enhance autonomy and
accountability in operating the units. Review and improve the organizational structure towards streamlining and
efficiency; ensure human resources for production and business operations; accelerate the application of technological
advancements in management and operations,

- Complete legal documents for the Company's land areas; review, amend, supplement, and complete the Company's

regulations and rules.
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MEETINGS OF THE BOD

- The minutes of the Board of Directors meelings are
fully recorded with the signatures of the attending
Board members, ensuring compliance with legal
regulations; dossiers and documents are fully sent to
the Board members attending the meetings for
reference and study in advance in accordance with the
Charter, Therefore, the contents approved by the Board
of Directors are always highly unanimous and
consensual,

- The Board members have a spirit of selidarity,
demonstrate a sense of responsibility and perform well
their rights and obligations as Board members in
accordance with the Company's Charter and the Law
on Enterprises.

- In 2024, the Board of Directors issued 04 Decisions
and 07 Resolutions under the authority of the Board of

Directors.

Activities of Independent Board Members: (None).

Page 33

Ne.| %:23;?}1 B Date Content Approval Rate
; February 28, | Planto orgaruze the 2024 Annual
U | SRRAmaEEm 2024 " | General Meetng of Shareholders SRR
M . | Plan for short-term loans an
& || SRR 2024 | guaranteesin2024 e
March 11 Approval of contracts and
3 | 03/QD-HDQT/SGE 024 " | tansactions betweenthe Company 100%
and related parties
On the non-mplementation of
Decision No. 28/QD-HDQT/SGB
March 11, | dated November 27, 2020 of the
% | REOpaDgRaoR 2024 | Board of Directors of Saigon|  100%
Passenger Transport Joint Stock
Company
Onthe approval of the content to
be submitted to the 2024 Annual
5 | 05/QD-HDQT/SGB | April 3,2024 | General Meeting of Shareholders 100%
of Saigon Passenger Transport
Joint Stock Company
Onthe approval of the content to
be submitted to the 2024 Annual
6 | 06/OD-HDQT/SGB | Apnl 15,2024 | General Meeting of Shareholders 100%
of Saigen Passenger Transport
Joint Stock Company
On the selection of an auditing
firn to review the semi-annual
finandal statements and audit the
7 07/QD-HDQT/SGB | May 29,2024 anmul financial statemets of 2024 100%
of Saigon Passenger Transport
Joint Stock Company
On threﬁ%mnpnm f%r;] the
August 27, | Deputy Gen irectorof Saigon
$ | DNQR-EDQTACH gg;‘l Passenger Transport Joint Stock 1006
g:mhlimy blishment of a branch
the esta of a brane!
2 | 09/QD-HDQT/SGBE Scpt;g’;::‘ Bl or Saigon Passenger Transport 100%
enber25, | On'the adustmcnt of
September 25, adjustment of the type of
10 | 10/Qp-HDQT/sG | Septgmbear23, | Onthead; 100%
On the allocation of the
supplementary renumeration fund
December 31, | ofthe Board of Directors and the
11 | 1/QD-HDQT'EGE 2024 Supervisory Board of Saigon 105

Passenger Transpoit Joint Stock
Company
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SUPERVISORY BOARD

EVALUATION OF THE SUPERVISORY
BOARD'S PERFORMANCE DURING THE
YEAR:

- The Supervisory Board attended all meetings of
the Board of Directors and provided leedback on
the policies and decisions of the Board of
Directors and the General Director,

- The Supervisory Board  proactively
communicated,  exchanged, and reached
consensus with the Board of Directors, the
General  Director, and other management
personnel on the content and plans for inspection

NUMBER OF SUPERVISORY BOARD MEETINGS
and supervision at the Company. Al the same

RNumber of N Reazon for C i s
No.| SupervioryBosrd | CLUETET | Auendance | Voting | UL time, the Company's Executive Board facilitated
Member Avended Rate Rare Kilisdaiiss

gi.'.w Mpiyem  Ques o o % the Supervisory Board in collecting information
Mes. Tran TH Npec 14 e 0% pes and documents related to the Company's
2 Vo Thi Heng = — P = production and business activities upon request.
s Ve Thi 1o - The Supervisory Board also received all
documents direction  and

M
Mrs. Tean R Tuyen 3 % 103% (D)
administration of the Board of Directors and the
General Director,

¥4 5% 100% **

during  the

1

2

3

4

3
15} Mes, Tran Thi Ngoe Dung and Mes, Vu Thi Hong Cam are no longer Supervisory Board
members from April 25, 2024,
*=); Mrs. Nyuyen Thi To ¥ and Mrs. Tean Kim Tuyen becume Supervisory Bosrd members
from April 25, 2014,

LIST OF CHANGES IN THE SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS IN 2024:

Mrs. Tran Thi Ngoc Dung Member 0 Apnl 25, 2024
Mrs. Nguyen Thi To Nhu Member 0 0% April 25, 2024
Mrs. Vu Thi Hong Cam Member 0 0% April 25, 2024
Mrs. Tran Kim Tuyen Member 2.100 0.004% April 25, 2024
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TRANSA CTIONS. REMUNERATION, AND BENEFITS OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORY BOARD, AND
MANAGEMENT

Based on the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders Resolution, the salary and remuneration plan for the Board
of Directors, the Supervisory Board, and the Company's Executive Board, as approved at the General Meeting, is as
follows:

No. Position Quauntity | Monthly Remuneration Value
) ' (people) (Million VND (Million VND)

Board of Directors

1 | Chairman of the Board 1 3 96

2 | Board member 6 6 432
Supervisory Board

1 [ Head of the Supervisory Board 1 25 300

2 | Member of the Supervisory Board 5 120
Executive Board 5 3,800

- Supplementary Remuneration Fund for the Board of Dircclors and the Supervisory Board:
Supplementation of remuneration for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board il the Company
meets or exceeds the planned profit level approved by the Gencral Meeting of Shareholders, The
supplementary remuneration fund is recorded in the 2024 business results. The supplement is 1% of the
planned profit and 5% of the excess profit. The Company's Board of Directors decides the distribution
ratio of the supplementary remuneration fund among the members of the Board of Directors and the

Supervisory Board.

Remuneration of the Board of Directors in 2024
(including supplementary remuneration fund):

muneration

Salary and Remuneration of the Supervisory
Board in 2024 (including supplementary
remuneration fund):

EullNuille" Lol e (Million YND) Full Name Pasition iy |
Mrs, Le Thi MY““'_.‘I' Chninan of the Board of Directors 176 Mr. Nguyven Quoc Soan Head of Supervisory Board 370
Me. Pham Hoang Hiep Member 192 : Former Supsivisory Board
Mr. Tran Ngoe Dan Member 132 Mis. Tran Thi Ngoc Dung Member 15
Me. Nguyen Tuan Viet Member 132 PR Former Supervisory Board
Mr. Nguyen Ho Minh Member 132 e, Vot Hiwg Gy Member i3
Mr. Tran Lam Member 132 Mrs. Npuyen Thi To Nhu Supervisory Board Member 75
Mr. Tran Long Member 132 Mrs. Tran Kim Tuyen Supen-u’surv Board Member 75
Tatal 1.028 Total S50

<" Insider Stock Transactions: None

Salary of the Executive Board in 2024:

Full Name Position (Million YND)
Mz, Pham Hoang Hiep General Director 948.5
Mr. Nguyen Tuan Viet Deputy General Director 731
Mr. Nguyen Ho Minh Deputy General Director 731
fr. Nim Vuon Fhu Deputy General Director 731
Mrs, Doan Thi Giao Thuyet|  Chief Accountant 638.5
Total 3,800

IMPLEMENTATION OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS

The Company's governance is always ensured in accordance with the law, charter, internal
regulations, and criteria to ensure the Company's operations run as smoothly as possible; pursuing
goals for the benefit of the company and its shareholders, as well as facilitating the effective
supervision of the Company's activities, thereby encouraging the Company to use resources in the

best possible way.
In addition, the Company always enhances the management knowledge of the Board of Directors
and the Executive Board by sending staff to training courses as announced by the State Securities
Commission, relevant agencies, and corporate governance classes.
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SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Ho Chi Minh City

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors of Sai Gon Passenger transport Joint Stock Company presents this report
together with the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

COMPANY

Sai Gon Passenger transport Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”) is a company
formed through the equitization process of a state-owned enterprise, which used to be Saigon Passenger
Transport One Member Limited Company under Decision No. 7164/QD-UBND dated 31 December 2015 of
Chairman of the People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City. The Company was granted the Enterprise
Registration Certificate No. 0300478044 by the Ho Chi Minh Department of Planning and Investment for
the first time on 21 April 2006, and changed for the 15th time on 13 January 2025.

Charter capital of the Company according to the Certificate of Business Registration number 0300478044
changed for the 15th time on 13 January 2025 is VND 600,000,000,000 (/ words: Six hundred billion
Vietnamese Dongs).

The Company’s stock is currently listed on the UpCOM Stock Exchange with stock code: BSG.

The Company’s headquarter is located on: No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Ho Chi Minh City
BOARDS OF MANAGEMENT, SUPERVISORS AND GENERAL DIRECTORS

Members of the Boards of Management, Supervisors, General Directors who held the Company during the
year and at the date of this report are as follows:

Board of Management

Ms. Le Thi My Hanh Chairman
Mr. Tran Ngoc Dan Member
Mr. Pham Hoang Hiep Member
Mr. Tran Lam Member
Mr. Nguyen Tuan Viet Member
Mr. Nguyen Ho Minh Member
Mr. Tran Long Member

Board of Supervisors

Mr. Nguyen Quoc Soan Head of the Board

Ms. Tran Thi Ngoc Dung Member (Dismissed from 25 April 2024)
Ms. Vo Thi Hong Cam Member (Dismissed from 25 April 2024)
Ms. Nguyen Thi To Nhu Member (Appointed from 25 April 2024)
Ms. Tran Thi Tuyen Member (Appointed from 25 April 2024)
Board of General Directors

Mr. Pham Hoang Hiep General Director

Mr. Nguyen Tuan Viet Deputy General Director

Mr. Nguyen Ho Minh Deputy General Director

Mr. Nim Vuon Phu Deputy General Director
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SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Ho Chi Minh City

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

According to the Board of [General] Directors, in all material respects, there have been no other significant
events occurring after the balance sheet date, affecting the financial position and operation of the Company
which would require adjustments to or disclosures to be made in the financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2024,

AUDITORS

The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 have been audited by CPA
VIETNAM Auditing Company limited - A Member Firm of INPACT.

THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The Company’s Board of General Directors is responsible for preparing the financial statements, which
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31/12/2024 as well as of its income
and cash flows statements for the year then ended, complying with Vietnamese Standards on Accounting,
Vietnamese Accounting System and relevant regulations in preparation and disclosure of financial
statements. In preparing these financial statements, the Board of General Directors is required to:

e Select appropriate accounting policies and apply them consistently

e Make judgments and estimates prudently;

e State clearly whether the Accounting Standards applied to the Corporation are followed or not, and all
the material differences from these standards are disclosed and explained in the Financial Statements;

e Design and implement effectively the internal control system in order to ensure that the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements are free from material misstatements due to frauds or errors.

e Prepare the Financial Statements of the Company on the going-concern basis, except for the cases that
the going-concern assumption is considered inappropriate;

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and to ensure that the
financial statements comply with Vietnamese Standards on Accounting, Vietnamese Accounting System
and relevant legal regulations in preparation and presentation of the financial statements. The Board of
General Directors is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frauds and other irregularities

The Board of General Directors confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in
preparing the financial statements.

Board of General Directors' Approval of the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of Saigon Passenger Transport Joint Stock Company, has approved the Financial

L!I PHI&N
M K;IMH

'--~.___.

Le Thi My Hanh
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Ho Chi Minh City, 03 March 2025
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CPAVIETNAM

CPA VIETNAM AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED

Head Office in Hanoi:
8" floor, VG Building, No. 235 Nguyen Trai Str.,

Thanh Xuan Dist., Hanoi, Vietnam l' N PA C T

MEMBER

@ +84 (24) 3783 2121 info@cpavietnam.vn
S +84 (24) 3783 2122 www.cpavietnam.vn

No.: 80/2025/BCKT-CPA VIETNAM-HCM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: Shareholders
The Board of Management, Supervisors and General Directors

Saigon Passenger Transport Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Saigon Passenger Transport Joint Stock
Company prepared on 03 March 2025 as set out on pages 06 to page 38, including the Balance sheet as at
31 December 2024, and the Income Statement, and Cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and Notes
to the financial statements.

Responsibility of the Board of General Directors

The Company’s Board of General Directors is responsible for the true and fair preparation and presentation
of these Financial Statements in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting and the relevant statutory requirements applicable to the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements, and for the internal control as the Board of General Directors
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibility of Auditors

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. These standards require us to comply with
the Standards and codes of ethics, to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the Company's financial statements are there any significant errors or not.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
Financial Statements. The audit procedures are selected based on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of risks of material misstatement in the Financial Statements due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair
presentation of the Financial Statements in order to design appropriate audit procedures to the actual
situation, which is not intended to give an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Financial
Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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CPAVIETNAM

Opinion of Auditors

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial Statements gives a true and fair view of, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements in Vietnam.

Emphasis of maftter paragraph

As stated in Notes 5.3 and 6.1 of the Financial Statement Explanatory Notes, the company's service revenue
and corresponding short-term receivables from the Public Transport Management Center for bus fare
subsidies were only settled by the end of 2013 and the year 2017, 2018, 2019. This subsidy revenue is
recognized based on the unit price specified in the signed order contract with the Public Transport
Management Center. Additionally, the public passenger transport service contracts by bus between the
Company and the Public Transport Management Center have not been liquidated since 2009. Therefore,
this subsidy revenue and these receivables will change when there is an official settlement by the relevant
authorities.

As stated in Note 4 of the Financial Statement Explanatory Notes, the Company officially transitioned to
operating as a Joint Stock Company on 19 August 2016. As of the date of this Report, the State Audit has
completed the audit of the finalization of the value of state capital and has issued an audit report on the
finalization of the value of state capital at the time of the official transition to a joint stock company of the
Company, according to Decision No. 7164/QD-UBND dated 31 December 2015, of the Ho Chi Minh City
People's Committee on approving the plan and converting Saigon Passenger Transport One Member
Limited Liability Company under Saigon Mechanical and Transport Corporation - One Member Limited
Liability Company into a joint stock company. The Company has completed the State Capital Finalization
Dossier according to the conclusions and recommendations of the State Audit and is submitting it to the
competent authority for approval. The final approved state capital finalization may change the recorded
value of the Company's assets and liabilities. Relevant adjustments, if any, will be made by the Company
upon final approval of the capital finalization by the competent authority.

Our audit opinion is not affected by the aforementioned issues.

Bui Thi Thuy Le Thanh Tung Lam

Deputy General Director Auditor

Audit Practising Registration Certificate Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No: 0580-2023-137-1 No: 5475-2021-137-1

Letter of Authorization No: 04/2025/UQ-CPA VIETNAM dated 02 January 2025 of Chairman
For and on behalf of

CPA VIETNAM AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED

An independent member of INPACT

Ha Noi, 03 March 2025




SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT JOINT

STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 01 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance
BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

31 December 2024 01 January 2024

ASSETS Codes Notes VND VND

A - CURRENT ASSETS 100 220,171,443,373 186,310,671,723

(100 = 110+120+130+140-+150)

- Cash and cash equivalents 110 5.1 111,262,456,296 49,959,745,159
1. Cash 111 14,262,456,296 4,959,745,159
2. Cash equivalents 112 97,000,000,000 45,000,000,000
II- Short-term financial investments 120 5.2 - 20,725,616,438 58,500,000,000
1. Investments held to maturity 123 20,725,616,438 58,500,000,000
II1- Short-term receivables 130 81,525,626,106 70,269,505,790
1. Short-term receivables from customers 131 53 58,242,181,938 43,504,226,787
2, Prepayments to sellers in short-term 132 470,853,801 783,900,421
3. Other short-term receivables 136 5.4 28,115,136,433 31,259,185,315
4. Short-term allowances for doubtful debts 137 5.5 (5,302,546,066) (5,277,806,733)
IV- Inventories 140 5.6 5,435,599,160 5,494,107,948
1. Inventories 141 5,435,599,160 5,494,107,948
V- Other short-term assets 150 1,222,145,373 2,087,312,826
1. Short-term prepaid expenses 151 S 189,664,060 173,655,248
g, RN GRmEstnctigh (e o 155 5.12 1,032,481,313 1,913,657,578

government budget y
B - LONG-TERM ASSETS 200 337,240,766,884 328,095,668,457
(200 = 210+220+240+250+260)
II Fixed assets 220 326,570,905,442 316,578,572,100
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 5.8 324,758,162,387 315,467,795,958
- Historical costs 222 1,002,817,514,912 921,560,596,028
- Accumulated depreciation 223 (678,059,352,525) (606,092,800,070)
2. Intangible fixed assets 227 5.9 1,812,743,055 1,110,776,142
- Historical costs 228 3,709,271,250 2,779, 541,250
- Accumulated amortization 229 (1,896,528,195) (1,668,765,108)

III. Investment properties 230 = =
IV. Long-term assets in progress 240 664,083,636 664,083,636
1. Construction in progress 242 5.10 664,083,636 664,083,636
V. Long-term financial investments 250 = =
VI Other long-term assets 260 10,005,777,806 10,853,012,721
1. Long-term prepaid expenses 261 5.7 10,005,777,806 10,853,012,721

E
s o s 270 557,412,210,257 514,406,340,180

(270 = 100+200)

XN\
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SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT JOINT

STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 01 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance
BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
As at 31 December 2024
01 January 2024
31 December 2024 VND
RESOURCES Codes Notes VND (Re-stated)
A- LIABILITIES 300 181,389,719,642 183,254,467,843
(300 = 310+330)
I- Short-term liabilities 310 143,792,429,942 153,464,240,383
1. Short-term supplier payables 311 5.11 70,418,124,569 84,576,391,297
2. Short-term prepayments from customers 312 1,037,057,086 1,044,868,721
§, TSROl PR P 313 5.12 3,752,156,535 4,247,240,838
budget
4, Payables to employees 314 29,639,158,445 28,836,095,282
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 313 24,196,222 916 21,744,671,220
6. Short-term unearned revenue 318 10,841,772,002 520,266,137
7. Other short-term payments 319 5.14 1,463,405,531 1,558,383,773
g. tho-rt.-t'erm borrowings and finance lease 320 5.15 i 9.371,689,655
liabilities
9. Short-term provisions 321 2,430,377,218 1,550,477,820
10. Bonus and welfare fund 322 14,155,640 14,155,640
II- Long-term liabilities 330 37,597,289,700 29,790,227,460 =
1. Long-term supplier payables 331 Si11 34,900,000,000 26,410,000,000 N
2. Other long-term payables 337 5.14 2,697,289,700 1,445,527,460 b
3. ITon.g?tjerm borrowings and finance lease 138 5.15 i 1,934,700,000 T’F
liabilities 2
B- RESOURCES 400 376,022,490,615 331 ,151,872,33‘1; Al
(400 = 410+430)
I-  Owner’s equity 410 5.16 376,022,490,615 331,151,872,337 W
1. Contributed capital 411 600,000,000,000 600,000,000,000 -
- Ordinary shares with voting rights 41la 600,000,000,000 600,000,000,000
2. Undistributed profit after tax 421 (223,977,509,385) (268,848,127,663)
- istri d { after 1. g
el PR . o (268,848,127,663)  (303,868,746,888)
Jorward
~ Unaitriluted propt after tox 421b 44,870,618,278 35,020,619,225 =
Jor the current year 00
II- Other resources and other funds 430 - & LL}‘N
GO |
TOTAL RESOURCES ;
XE K
(440 = 300+400) 440 557,412,210,257 514,406,340,180 v
Al
Preparer
/ e PHAN 7
_ XE KHACH
o A1 GO
Nguyen Thi Van Anh Doan Thi Giao Thuyet




SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT JOINT

STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 02 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance
INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024
Year 2024 Year 2023
ITEMS Codes Notes VND VND
fi | d i
g, cveniefrom siics sad serxiogs 01 6.1 627,512,823,414  515,210,692,367
rendered
2.  Less deductions _ 02 - -
3 Net revenues from sales and services 10 627.512.823.414 515.210.692.367
" rendered (10=01-02) & i
4.  Cost of goods sold 11 6.2 533,545,751,119 429,955,858,924
Gross revenues from sales and services
5. 20 3,967, 85,254,833,
rendered (20 = 10-11) 93,967,072,295 54,833,443
6. Financial income 21 6.3 3,447,245,999 3,723,282,148
7.  Financial expenses 22 6.4 226,901,736 1,394,440,110
In which: Interest expenses 23 226,901,736 1,394,440,110
8.  Selling expenses 24 6.5 2,220,432,835 2,059,266,981
9 General and administration expenses 25 6.6 50,674,393,092 53,002,199,481
Operating profit (loss)
10. 30 2,522,
0 (30 = 20+(21-22)-(24+25)} 44,292,590,631 32,522,209,019
11. Other income 31 6.7 2,373,840,449 4,336,870,192
12.  Other expenses 32 6.7 1,795,812,802 1,838,459,986
13. Profit (loss) from other activities 40 6.7 578,027,647 2,498,410,206
(40=31-32)

14. Accounting profit (loss) before tax 50 44,870,618,278 35,020,619,225
(50 = 30+40)

15. Current corporate income tax expenses 51 6.8 = 5

16. Deferred corporate income tax expenses 52 = .
Profits after enterprise incometax

17. 60 44, ) ,020,

7 (60 = 50-51-52) 870,618,278 35,020,619,225
18. Earnings per share 70 6.9 748 584

Preparer

/U}/,

Nguyen Thi Van Anh

Doan Thi Giao Thuyet

C[']'NG TY
ch PHﬁN
XE KHACH

SAI GOK

Ho Chi Minh City, 03 March 2025




SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT JOINT

STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 03 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)
For the year ended 31 December 2024
Year 2024 Year 2023
ITEMS Codes VND VND
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Praofit before tax 01 44,870,618,278 35,020,619,225
2. Adjustments for:
- Depreciation of fixed assets and investment real property 02 76,623,603,502 71,653,906,687
- Provisions 03 904,638,731 (1,281,228,545)
- Gains on investing activities 05 (3,296,340,033) (6,680,640,805)
- Interest expense 06 226,901,736 1,394,440,110
3. Operating profit before movements in working capital 08 119,329,422,214 100,107,096,672
- (Increase) decrease in receivables 09 (10,462,583,402) (16,054,035,432)
- (Increase) decrease in inventories 10 58,508,788 (510,408,521)
- Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 11 8,567,067,042 (14,966,480,510)
- (Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 12 (98,503,897) 4,409,952,507
- Interest paid 14 (232,226,722) (1,415,079,459)
Net cash from operating activities 20 117,161,684,023 71,571,045,257
IL. Cash flows from investing activities
L Expenditures on purchase and construction of fixed assets 21 (85,837.112,810) (14,431,767,686)
and long-term
5. Proceeds from disposal or transfer of fixed assets and other 2 62,900,018 4315,486,532
long-term assets
3. Expenditures on loans and purchase of debt instruments 23 (5,225,616,438) (58,000,000,000)
from other entities
4 Proceeds ﬁ'om']t.andmg or repurchase of debt instruments 24 43,000,000,000 i
from other entities
5. Proceeds from interests, dividends and distributed profits 27 3,447,245,999 3,723,282,148
Net cash used in investing activities 30 (44,552,583,231) (64,392,999,006)
III. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Proceeds from borrowings 33 832,120,828 700,000,000
2. Repayments of borrowings 34 (12,138,510,483) (30,032,793,469)
Net cash flows from financial activities 40 (11,306,389,655) (29,332,793,469)
Net cash flows during the period
(50 = 20+30+40) 50 61,302,711,137 (22,154,747,218)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 60 49,959,745,159 72,114,492,377
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period -
(70 = 50+60+61) 70 111,262,456,296.00 49,959,745,159.00
ity, 03 March 2025
Preparer Chief Accounta

Nguyen Thi Van Anh

oan Thi Giao Thuyet

EE'J‘NG TY
CO PHAN
XE KHACH
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SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 09 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

COMPANY INFORMATION
Structure of ownership

Sai Gon Passenger transport Joint Stock Company is a company formed through the equitization
process of a state-owned enterprise, which used to be Saigon Passenger Transport One Member
Limited Company under Decision No. 7164/QD-UBND dated 31 December 2015 of Chairman of the
People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City. The Company was granted the Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 0300478044 by the Ho Chi Minh Department of Planning and Investment for the first
time on 21 April 2006, and changed for the 15th time on 13 January 2025.

Charter capital of the Company according to the Certificate of Business Registration number
0300478044 changed for the 15th time on 13 January 2025 is VND 600,000,000,000 (In words: Six
hundred billion Vietnamese Dongs).

English name: SAIGON PASSENGER TRANSPORT JOINT STOCK COMPANY.
Abbreviated Company name: SATRANCO.
The Company’s stock is currently listed on the UpCOM Stock Exchange with stock code: BSG.

The Company’s headquarter is located on: No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Ho Chi
Minh City

Total number of the Company’s employees as at 31 December 2024 is 986 (as at 31 December 2023
is 875 employees).

Operating industries and principal activities

Operating industries of the Company is commercial and service activities.

Operating industries:
According to Certificate of Business Registration, the operating industries of the Company include:
Restaurants and mobile food services:

Public passenger transport business by car. Passenger transport business by contract, on fixed
routes. International intermodal passenger transport business. Cargo transport business by car.
Maintenance and repair of motor vehicles. Production: manufacturing, remodeling, and assembling
all types of automobiles (not produced at the headquarters; except for vehicle design). Domestic
and international travel business. Import and export, buying and selling cars, trucks, trailers,
components, spare parts, and auxiliary parts of all types of automobiles. Petroleum business agent.
Buying and selling lubricants, clean engine oils, and other fuels used in engines. Renting
warehouses, parking lots, houses, offices (this function is not performed for state-transferred
assets). Parking service for 2-wheel and 4-wheel vehicles. Real estate brokerage. Real estate
management services. Real estate services. Import and export, buying and selling mechanical
products, electronics - electrical, raw materials, supplies, equipment, technology, machinery, spare
parts for the transportation sector. Tourism accommodation business: hotels (not operated at the
headquarters). Study abroad consultancy. Organizing fairs and conferences. Agents selling airplane,
train, hydrofoil, and car tickets. Commercial advertising. Vocational training.

Principal activities of the company for the year are:
Passenger transport business by car;

Passenger transport business by contract, on fixed routes;
Domestic travel business;

Petroleum business agent;

Renting warehouses, parking lots, houses, and offices;

Other services.
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SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT

JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5,
Ho Chi Minh City

Form No. B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.
2.1

2.2

Normal operating cycle
The Company’s normal operating cycle is 12 months.

The company structure
The company has 06 business units, 01 dependent business location in Ho Chi Minh City and 01
dependent branch in Hanoi, which includes:

No. Name of the enterprise Address
1 Automotive Repair Services No. 1 Pham Hong Thai, Ward 2, Tan Binh District,
Enterprise Ho Chi Minh City
2 Transport and Tourism Enterprise 592 Cong Hoa, Ward 13, Tan Binh District, Ho Chi
Minh City
3 Tan Binh Driving Test Center No. 1 Pham Hong Thai, Ward 2, Tan Binh District,
. Ho Chi Minh City
4 SaiGonBus Vocational Education No. 1 Pham Hong Thai, Ward 2, Tan Binh District,
Center ~ Ho Chi Minh City
5 The Bus Transport Enterprise
includes the following units:
- Lac Long Quan Bus Office 343/20 Lac Long Quan, Ward 5, District 11, Ho Chi
Minh City
- Pho Quang Bus Office No. 1 Pham Hong Thai, Ward 2, Tan Binh District,
Ho Chi Minh City
- Phan Van Tri Bus Office 439 Phan Van Tri, Ward 5, Go Vap District, Ho Chi
Minh City
6 Petroleum Store 500 Nguyen Dinh Chieu, Ward 4, District 3, Ho Chi
Minh City
7 Business location 171 Dien Bien Phu, Ward 15, Binh Thanh District,
Ho Chi Minh City
439 Phan Van Tri, Ward 5, Go Vap District, Ho Chi
Minh City
8 Ha Noi Branch 18th Floor, CEO Tower, Lot HH2-1, Me Tri Ha

Urban Area, Pham Hung Street, Me Tri Ward, Nam
Tu Liem District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

Statement of information comparability on the financial statements

The Board of General Directors ensures to follow all the requirements of the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards and System, which were issued together with the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22
December 2014 and Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 on amending and
supplementing a number of articles of Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014
issued by the Ministry of Finance. Therefore, the information and figures presented in the Financial
Statements are comparable.

FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY
Fiscal year

The Company’s fiscal year applicable for the preparation of its financial statements starts on 1st
January and ends on 3 1st December of solar year.

Accounting currency

The accompanying Financial Statements are expressed in Vietnam Dong (VND).

11

N
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JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 09 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

3:
3.1

3.2

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM
Accounting System

The Company applied the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System promulgated under Circular No.
200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014, issued by the Ministry of Finance; Circular No.
53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 issued by the Ministry of Finance, amending and adding some
articles of Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC.

Statements for the compliance with Accounting Standards and System

The Board of General Directors ensures to follow all the requirements of the Vietnamese Accounting
Standards and System, which were issued to guide the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation the financial statements

The attached financial statements are expressed in Vietnam Dong (VND), under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting
System, and legal regulations relevant to the preparation and presentation of Financial Statements.

The enclosed financial statements are not intended to reflect the financial situation, results of
business operations and cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and
practices in countries other than Vietnamese.

Equitization Settlement

The company officially transitioned to operate as a joint stock company starting on 19 August 2016.
However, as of the date of this financial report, the company has not received decisions from the
competent authorities regarding the equitization settlement and the handover minutes to the joint
stock company.

As of the date of this Report, the State Audit has completed the audit of the finalization of the value of
state capital and has issued an audit report on the finalization of the value of state capital at the time of the
official transition to a joint stock company of the Company, according to Decision No. 7164/QD-UBND
dated 31 December 2015, of the Ho Chi Minh City People's Committee on approving the plan and
converting Saigon Passenger Transport One Member Limited Liability Company under Saigon
Mechanical and Transport Corporation - One Member Limited Liability Company into a joint stock
company. The Company has completed the State Capital Finalization Dossier according to the
conclusions and recommendations of the State Audit and is submitting it to the competent authority for
approval. The final approved state capital finalization may change the recorded value of the Company's
assets and liabilities. Relevant adjustments, if any, will be made by the Company upon final approval of
the capital finalization by the competent authority.

Accounting estimates

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards
requires the Board of General Directors to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of liabilities, assets, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the fiscal year.
Actual results may differ from those estimates and assumptions.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand, bank deposits.

Cash equivalents comprise short-term deposits and highly liquid investments with an original
maturity of less than 3 months that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 09 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial investments
Held to maturity investmmenis

Held to maturity investments are those that the Company has intention and ability to hold until
maturity. Held to maturity investments includes: term bank deposits with original maturities of more
than 3 months (including bills and promissory notes), held-to-maturity loans for the purpose of
earning periodic interest and other held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized at cost including the purchase cost and other
transaction costs. Interest from these held-to-maturity investments after acquisition date is recognized
in the profit or loss on the basis of the interest income to be received. Interests arising prior to the
Company's acquisition of held-to-maturity investments are recorded as a decrease in the costs as at
the acquisition time.

Held-to-maturity investments are stated at cost less allowance for bad debts.

Allowance for bad debts of held-to-maturity investments is made in conformity with current
accounting regulations.

Receivables

The receivables comprise the customer receivables and other receivables. Receivables are recognized
at the carrying amounts less allowances for doubtful debts.

Allowance for doubtful debts is assessed and made for overdue receivables that are difficult to be
collected, or the debtor is unable to pay due to dissolution, bankruptcy or similar difficulties.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories comprise
costs of direct materials, direct labor, and general operation (if any) incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and conditions.

The cost of inventories is determined in accordance with the weighted average method and is
accounted for using the perpetual inventory method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price of inventory items less all estimated costs of
completion and costs of marketing, selling and distribution.

The Company’s allowance for impairment of inventories is made when there is reliable evidence of
impairment of the net realizable value compared to the history cost of inventories.

Tangible fixed assets and Depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are stated at history cost less accumulated depreciation.

Historical costs of tangible fixed assets include all the expenses paid by the Company to bring the
asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Tangible fixed assets have been re-evaluated using the asset-based approach to determine the value
of the enterprise for the purpose of equitizing the state-owned enterprise as of 30 June 2015.
Accordingly, the original cost of tangible fixed assets is reflected based on the re-evaluated original
cost according to the Enterprise Valuation Report.

13



SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT
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No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Tangible fixed assets and Depreciation (Continued)

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using over their estimated useful lives. Details are as follows:

(Years)
Buildings, structures 05-50
Machinery and equipment 05-25
Motor vehicles 05-20
Office equipment ' 05-20
Others 05-25

Gains and losses arising from the liquidation of assets are the difference between the income from
liquidation and the remaining value of the assets, and are recognized in the Income Statement.

Intangible fixed assets and Amortization

The Company’s intangible assets are Computer software, are stated at history cost less accumulated
amortization.
Computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 07 years.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses comprise actual expenses arising but relevant to financial performance in several
accounting periods. The Company’s prepaid expenses includes:

Tools and supplies

Tools and supplies are recorded to expenses and depreciated to on a straight-line basis with useful
life of not exceeding 36 months '

Land lease rent

Prepaid land rent represents the land rent paid for the land the Company is using at 171 Dien Bien
Phu, Ward 15, Binh Thanh District, Ho Chi Minh City. The prepaid land lease is allocated to
expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term. As the company has not yet signed a land lease
contract with the Department of Natural Resources and Environment of Ho Chi Minh City, the
allocation period for the prepaid land lease has not been determined.

Goodwill on privatisation of state-owned companies

Goodwill on privatisation of state-owned companies is recognized in accordance with Decision No.
7025/QD-UBND dated 25 December 2015, issued by the People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City,
concerning the determination of enterprise value for the purpose of equitization. Goodwill is
allocated to expenses on a straight-line basis over a period of 10 years from the date the company
officially transitioned to a joint stock company.

Fixed assets major repairs expenses

Fixed assets major repairs expenses which have significant value incurring one time which are
recorded to expenses and amortized on a straight-line basis over 36 months.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress reflects the Properties in progress for production, leasing, administrative
purposes, or for any other purposes are recognized at the historical cost. This cost includes relevant
service fees, interest fees in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies. Depreciation of these
assets is the same as the other assets, commencing from these assets are ready for their intended use.
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SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 09 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Payables

The account payables are monitored in details by payable terms, payable parties, original currency
and other factors depending on the Company’s management requirement.

The account payables include payables as trade payables, loans payable, intercompany payable and
other payables which are determined almost certainly about the recorded value and term, which is not
carried less than amount to be paid. They are classified as follows:

e Trade payables: reflect payables of commercial nature arising from the purchase of goods, services,
or assets, payables for import through trustees of which the seller is an independent entity with the
Company.

e Other payables reflect payables of non-commercial nature and irrelevant to purchase, sales of
goods or provisions of services.

Loans and finance lease liabilities

Loans and finance lease liabilities include loans, financial leases, excluding loans in the form of
bonds or preference shares with terms that the issuer is required to repurchase at a certain point in the
future.

The Company monitors loan amounts and financial liabilities in details by each type and classifies
them into short-term and long-term according to repayment term.

Expenses directly related to the loan are recognized to financial expenses, except for expenses
incurred from a separate loan for investment, construction or production in progress, which are
capitalized according to Accounting Standard “Borrowing costs™.

Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses are those already recorded in operating expenses in the period/year but not actually
paid to ensure that when these expenses actually occur, they will not have a significant influence on
operating expenses based on matching principle between income and expenses.

The'Company recognizes Accrued expenses as follows:
e Interest expenses: Accrued based on the loan principal, term, and interest rate of the loan agreement.
Provisions for payables

The recognized amount of a provision for payables is the best estimate of the amount that will be
required to settle the present obligation as at the fiscal year end date or balance sheet date.

Only expenses related to the provision for payables made initially will be offset by such provision.

When the difference between the provision for payables made in the previous accounting period
that has not yet been used up is larger than the provision for payables made in the reporting
period, it shall be reversed and recorded as a decrease in production and business expenses in
the period, excluding the larger difference of the provision payables for warranty of construction
works reversed into other income in the period.

e The Company's provisions for liabilities are pre-allocated expenses for periodic repair and
maintenance of fixed assets, based on technical requirements according to Circular 65/2014/TT-
BGTVT dated 10 November 2014, regarding the issuance of the economic-technical framework
standards applicable to public passenger transport by bus.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Unrealized revenues

Unrealized revenue includes: revenue received in advance such as: The amount of money prepaid by
customers related to office for rent.

Periodically, the Company calculates, determines and recognizes the unrealized revenue transferred
to revenue for the year in line with the actual volume of gasoline sold.

Owners’ equity
Capital is recorded according to the actual amounts invested by Owners.

Undistributed profit is determined based on post-corporate income tax business results and the
distribution of profits or handling of losses by the company.

Revenue and other income

The Company's revenue includes revenue from sales of products and goods and service revenue.
Revenue from sale of goods and products

Revenue from sale of goods shall be recognized when it satisfies all the five (5) conditions below:
(a) The Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and reward of ownership of the goods;

(b) The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

(c) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

(d) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company; and

(e) Costs related to transactions can be determined.

Revenue from services

Service revenue includes actual transportation revenue according to the order contract and subsidy
revenue.

Actual transportation revenue calculated based on the unit price in the order contract = Revenue per
trip x Total number of actual trips.

Subsidy revenue is currently recognized as the difference between the actual costs calculated based
on the unit price in the order contract and the transportation revenue according to the order contract.

Revenue per trip = Average revenue per passenger (Unit price according to the order contract) x
Actual number of passengers per trip.

Actual costs calculated based on the unit price in the order contract = Cost per trip (Unit price
according to the order contract) x Total number of actual trips.

Cost per trip = Cost per trip calculated based on the fuel unit price according to Decision No.
3677/QD-UBND dated 28 June 2020, which includes adjusted fuel prices, wages minus depreciation
costs (for routes using vehicles over 10 years old), and attendant costs per trip (for routes without
attendants).

The number of passengers per trip and the total number of actual trips are based on the monthly
Acceptance Report of completed volumes with the Public Transport Management Center.

Average revenue per passenger and cost per trip are provisionally calculated based on the annual
order contract with the Public Transport Management Center and will be adjusted when there is a
final settlement from the competent authorities as of 31 December each year.

16

N\

At o, T

.‘O\\\\

Mg
/—"'_-—_"‘-\\

e
I"
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue from interest income and other income

The revenue is recognized when the Company can obtain economic benefits from the above activities
and when it is reliably measured.

Cost of goods sold

Cost of goods sold or services rendered including the cost of products, goods, services, investment
property, production cost of construction products (for construction enterprises) sold during the
period is recorded corresponding to revenue of the period. For cost which is over the normal level of
inventories is recorded directly into the cost of goods sold.

Financial expenses

Borrowing costs: Monthly recognition is based on the loan amount, loan interest rate, and the actual
number of days the loan is utilized.

Current corporate income tax expense

Current income tax expenses: are corporate income tax payable calculated on taxable profit during the
year and current corporate income tax rate. Current income tax is calculated on taxable income and
applicable tax rate during the tax period. Difference between taxable income and accounting profit is from
adjustment of differences between accounting profit and taxable income in accordance with current tax
policies.

The Company has an obligation to pay corporate income tax at the rate of 20% on taxable profits.

The determination of the Company's income tax is based on current tax regulations. However, these
regulations change from time to time and the final determination of corporate income tax depends on
the examination results of the competent tax authorities.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net profit ( loss) after tax for the year attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

Related parties

A party is considered a related party of the Corporation in case that party is able to control the
Corporation or to cause material effects on the financial decisions as well as the operations of the
Corporation. A party is also considered a related party of the Corporation in case that party is under
the same control or is subject to the same material effects.

When considering the relationship of related parties, the nature of relationship is focused more than
its legal form.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged in manufacturing
or providing products or related services (by business segment) or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical area) which is subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of other segments. The Board of Management confirms that the main
activity of the Company is trading in building materials and mainly operates in a geographical
segment of Vietnam. Therefore, the Company does not present segment reports by business segments
and by geographical segments in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 28 -
Segment Reporting.
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JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 09 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

o SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO ITEMS DISCLOSED IN THE BALANCE SHEET

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2024 01 January 2024

VND VND

Cash on hand 474,126,709 644,429,166
Cash in banks 13,788,329,587 4,315,315,993
Cash equivalents (i) 97,000,000,000 45,000,000,000

Total 111,262,456,296 49,959,745,159

(i) These are term deposits with a maturity of no more than three months at the bank, with interest rates ranging
from 4% to 4.5% per year

5.2 Short-term Financial investments

31 December 2024 (VND) 01 January 2024 (VND)

Original cost Book value Original cost Book value
Term deposits (i) 20,725,616,438 20,725,616,438 58,500,000,000 58,500,000,000
Total 20,725,616,438 20,725,616,438 58,500,000,000 58,500,000,000

(i) These are term deposits with a maturity of no more than twelve months at banks, with interest rates
ranging from 4% to 4.8% per year. In Which:

- A 12-month term deposit totalling VND 500,000,000 at the Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
Investment and Development of Vietnam - Thong Nhat Branch, which is being used as collateral for
international travel business activities.

- A deposit at the Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development - Branch 3 with an amount of
VND 15,225,616,438, which is being used as collateral for loans.

5.3 Short-term receivables from customers

31 December 2024 01 January 2024

VND VND

Public Transportation Management Center (i) 36,615,406,831 17,735,985,152
GB Hanoi Co., Ltd (i) 6,180,000,000 6,180,000,000
Ho Chi Minh City Open University 1,626,101,564 7,123,678,000
Others 13,820,673,543 12,464,563,635
Total 58,242,181,938 43,504,226,787
In which: Short-term receivables from related parties 4,073,834,792 3,943,958,292

(Details in Note 7.1)

(i)  Accounts receivable from the Public Transport Management Center related to bus fare subsidies and
ticket sales have only been settled up to the end of 2013 and the year 2017, 2018, 2019. Additionally,
the public passenger transport contracts by bus between the Company and the Public Transport
Management Center have not been seftled since 2009. Therefore, the subsidy revenue and these
receivables will be subject to change upon official settlement by the relevant authorities.

(i) The receivable related to the transfer of 4 cars to GB Hanoi Co., Ltd. is currently under dispute
(details are provided in Note 7.2).
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SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 09 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

5.7 Prepaid expenses

31 December 2024 01 January 2024

VND VND

a) Short-term 189,664,059 173,655,248
Vehicle insurance expenses 134,401,459 90,659,420
Others 55,262,600 82,995,828
b) Long-term ' 10,005,777,807 10,853,012,721
Business advantages (i) 959,747,655 1,550,361,591
Land rental at 171 Dien Bien Phu (ii) 8,944,963,213 8,944,963,213
Office and parking lot renovation costs - 79,578,310
Machinery and management tools costs 72,426,254 162,846,254
Others 28,640,685 115,263,353
Total 10,195,441,866 11,026,667,969

(i)  The business advantage value arising from the equitization of the company according to the State's
equitization regulations is allocated over 10 years from the date of transformation into a joint-stock

company on 19 August 2016.

(ii) The land lease at 171 Dien Bien Phu is recognized according to Decision No. 7025/QD-UBND dated
25 December 2015, by the People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City, regarding the determination of
the enterprise value during the company's equitization. Upon signing the land lease contract with the
Ho Chi Minh City Department of Natural Resources and Environment, the company will allocate the
land lease value over the actual lease period.
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SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5,

Ho Chi Minh City

Form No. B 09 - DN

Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

5.9 Intangible fixed assets

HISTORY COST

As at 01 January 2024
Addition

Purchase

Deduction
As at 31 December 2024
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION

As at 01 January 2024
Addition

Charged for the year
Deduction

As at 31 December 2024
NET BOOK VALUE
As at 01 January 2024
As at 31 December 2024

5.10 Construction in progress

High-rise parking lot project at 592 Cong Hoa Street,

Ward 13, Tan Binh District, Ho Chi Minh City (i)

Total

Unit: VND

Patent rights Total
2,779,541,250 2,779,541,250
929,730,000 929,730,000
929,730,000 929,730,000
3,709,271,250 3,709,271,250

1,668,765,108
227,763,087
227,763,087

1,668,765,108
227,763,087
227,763,087

1,896,528,195

1,896,528,195

1,812,743,055

1,110,776,142 1,110,776,142

e e e ——

1,812,743,055

31 December 2024

01 January 2024

VND VND
664,083,636 664,083,636
664,083,636 664,083,636

(i) The project is currently in the process of completing the planning documents. Upon receiving
feedback from the Ho Chi Minh City Department of Planning and Architecture, the company will
proceed with the implementation of the project.
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SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 09 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

5.13 Accrued expenses

01 January 2024
31 December 2024 VND
VND (Re-stated)
Interest expenses - 5,324,986
Land lease expenses not yet contracted, including: 24,196,222 916 21,739,346,234
No. 171, Pién Bién Phi Street, Ward 15, Binh Thanh
i ] ] r r ) 3 9
District, Ho Chi Minh City (i) B8 250,549 %a51,746,239
No. 500, Nguyéﬂ: Dinh Chiéu Street, Ward 4, District 3, ’
Ho Chi Minh City (ii) 6,561,378,275 2,587,152,480
No. 439 Phan Van Trj Street, Ward 5, Go Vd}) District,
1,1
Ho Chi Minh City (ii) , 180,590,228 930,568,500
No. 343/20 Lac Long Qudn Street, Ward 5, District 11,
; 12,484,45
Ho Chi Minh City (ii) o 8,369,777,015
Total 24,196,222,916 21,744,671,220

(i) The company is provisionally setting aside land lease expenses as it has not yet received a land lease fee
notice up to 19 August 2021. Currently, the company has submitted documents to the relevant authorities to
calculate and re-determine the land lease fees for the prior period.

(ii) The company is provisionally setting aside land lease expenses for the aforementioned locations as it
has not yet received land lease fee notices from the competent state authorities. Currently, the company's
executive board has submitted documents to the relevant departments and agencies to execute contracts and
calculate land lease fees to be paid to the state. The company is temporarily calculating land lease expenses
based on the land unit price, land unit price adjustment coefficient, land lease rate issued by the People's
Committee of Ho Chi Minh City, and relevant regulations issued by competent state authorities. This value
may change upon official approval by the competent state authorities.

5.14 Other payables

31 December 2024 01 January 2024

VND VND

Short-term 1,463,405,531 1,558,383,773
Trade Union fees 104,912,600 89,765,760
Short-term deposits received 854,197,760 1,074,742,016
Others 504,295,171 393,875,997
Long-term 2,697,289,700 1,445,527,460
Long-term deposits received 2,697,289,700 1,445,527,460
Total 4,160,695,231 3,003,911,233
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SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Form No. B 09 - DN
No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5, Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Ho Chi Minh City Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

5.16 Owners’ equity

a. Changes of owner’s equity
Unit: VND
Share capital Retained profits Total
As at 01 January 2023 600,000,000,000 (303,868,746,888) 296,131,253,112
Distribution to funds - 35,020,619,225 35,020,619,225
As at 31 December 2023 600,000,000,000 (268,848,127,663) 331,151,872,337
As at 01 January 2024 600,000,000,000 (268,848,127,663) 331,151,872,337
Distribution to funds - 44,870,618,278 44,870,618,278
As at 31 December 2024 - 600,000,000,000 (223,977,509,385) 376,022,490,615
b.  Details of owners’ equity
As at 31 December 2024 As at 01 January 2024
Ratio  Number of Value Ratio  Number of Value
Object (%) shares (VND) (%) shares (VND)

Saigon Transportation
Mechanical Corporation
- One Member Limited
Liability Company

Tan Thanh Do Group
Joint Stock Company

49.0% 29,400,000 294,000,000,000  49.0% 29,400,000 294,000,000,000

24.0% 14,427,400 144,274,000,000 24.0% 14,427,400 144,274,000,000

Mr. Pham Anh Hung 15.0% 9,000,000 90,000,000,000  15.0% 9,000,000 90,000,000,000
Mr. Nguyen Van Thanh 7.5% 4,500,000 45,000,000,000 71.5% 4,500,000 45,000,000,000
Other shareholders 4.5% 2,672,600 26,726,000,000 4.5% 2,672,600 26,726,000,000
Total 100% 60,000,000 600,000,000,000  100% 60,000,000 600,000,000,000

¢. Capital transactions with shareholders and appropriation of nrofits and dividends
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

Shareholders’ capital_
Capital contribution As at 01 January 600,000,000,000 600,000,000,000

Increased during the year - =

Decreased during the year & g
Capital contribution As at 31 December 600,000,000,000 600,000,000,000

Dividend distribution , _
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SAI GON PASSENGER TRANSPORT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No. 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong, Ward 11, District 5,
Ho Chi Minh City

Form No. B 09 - DN
Issued under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
Dated 22 December 2014 by The Ministry of Finance

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

5.16 Owners’ equity

c. Shares

Quantity of issued shares

Common shares
Preferred shares

Number of shares redeemed
Common shares
Preferred shares

Number of shares outstanding
Common shares
Preferred shares

31 December 2024 01 January 2024
Shares Shares

60,000,000 60,000,000
60,000,000 60,000,000
60,000,000 60,000,000
60,000,000 60,000,000

10,000 10,000

Par value of outstanding shares (VND/ shares)

6. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE ITEMS OF THE INCOME STATEMENT

6.1 Revenue from sales of goods and provision of services

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Revenue from sales of goods 70,324,305,125 61,619,964,309
Revenue from provision of services (i) 557,188,518,289 453,590,728,058
Total 627,512,823,414 515,210,692,367
In which, Revenue from related parties 8,115,560,468 6,679,477,596

(Details in Note 7.3)

(i) The Company records bus subsidy revenue from the Public Transport Management Center according to
the unit price specified in order contracts No. 140/HD-TT, 141/HD-TT, 142/HD-TT dated 06 June 2024
and contract No. 417/HD-TT dated 29 December 2023. The new subsidy revenue has been finalized until
2013 and the year 2017, 2018, 2019. Additionally, public passenger transport order contracts between the
Company and the Public Transport Management Center have not been liquidated from 2009 to now.
Therefore, the subsidy revenue and these receivables will change when there is an official finalization from
the relevant authorities.

6.2 Cost of goods sold

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Cost of goods sold 67,449,369,109 59,846,013,753
Cost of services rendered 466,096,382,010 370,109,845,171
Total 533,545,751,119 429,955,858,924
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6.3 Financial income

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Interests on loans, on cash in banks 3,447,245,999 3,723,282,148

Total 3,447,245,999 3,723,282,148

6.4 Financial expenses

Year 2024 Year 2023

_ VND VND

Interests expenses of loan 226,901,736 1,394,440,110

Total 226,901,736 1,394,440,110
6.5 Selling expenses Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Payroll expenses 1,320,391,501 1,087,643,525

Office supplies expenses 27,342,666 148,291,139

Amortization and Depreciation expenses 156,838,584 126,790,203

Outsourcing expenses 715,860,084 696,542,114

Total

6.6 Administrative expenses

2,220,432,835

2,059,266,981

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Employee expenses 13,565,270,081 11,534,069,283
Materials expenses 274,714,811 172,067,537
Office supplies expenses 713,731,885 619,562,814
Amortization and Depreciation expenses 2,560,059,963 2,788,566,360
Charges and fee 27,753,474,546 28,543,403,972
Provision expenses 24,739,333 4,606,921,103
Outsourcing expenses 5,702,402,473 4,606,978,412
Other cash expense 80,000,000 130,630,000
Total 50,674,393,092 53,002,199,481
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6.7 Other income

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Other income 2,373,840,449 4,336,870,192
Income from disposals of fixed assets 62,900,018 2,846,930,859
Electricity and water expenses for rental properties 1,897,136,735 1,125,101,511
Others 413,803,696 364,837,822
Other expenses 1,795,812,802 1,838,459,986
Negative difference between the fair value of assets 1,087,120,195 973,290,516
Fine payable from economic contracts 590,613,936 590,613,936
Late payment of taxes, late payment of land rent 16,129,876 10,403,393
Others 101,948,795 264,152,141
Net other income/expenses 578,027,647 2,498,410,206
6.8 Current corporate income tax
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Accounting profit before tax 44,870,618,278 35,020,619,225
Additions adjustments 810,639,884 5,359,558,697
Non-deductible expenses 810,639,884 5,359,558,697
Decrease adjustment - -
Taxable Income 45,681,258,162 40,380,177,922
Loss carryforward (45,681,258,162) (40,380,177,922)
Taxables income - -
Corporate Income Tax rate 20% 20%
Current corporate income tax expense - ”
6.9 Earnings per share
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Profit after corporate income tax 44,870,618,278 35,020,619,225

Profit distributable to common shareholders

Average quantity of outstanding common shares (Shares)

Earnings per share (VND/ Share)

31

44,870,618,278
60,000,000
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35,020,619,225
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6.10 Production and business expenses by factors

Year 2024 Year 2023

VIND VND

Raw material expenses 138,802,953,997 119,887,295,615
Employee expenses 170,545,540,751 142,151,777,078
Amortization and Depreciation expenses 76,623,603,502 71,653,906,687
Outsourcing expenses 84,440,196,308 58,179,377,178
Other cash expenses 27,833,474,546 28,692,033,972
Total 498,245,769,104 420,564,390,530

T OTHER INFORMATION

7.1 Commitments

Based on the Company's land lease agreements, the total minimum future lease payments for non-
cancellable operating leases of assets are as follows:

31 December 2024 01 January 2024

VND VND

Under 1 year 9,217,402,831 9,217,402,831
From 1 year to 5 years 4,994,519,040 4,994,519,040
Over 5 years 45,783,091,200 47,031,720,960
Total ' 59,995,013,071 61,243,642,831

Details of the above-mentioned payments include:

Total lease amount for 774.2 square meters of land at 39 Hai Thuong Lan Ong Street, Ward 11, District 5,
Ho Chi Minh City at the rental rate of VND 1,612,800 per square meter per year according to lease contract
No. 3744/HD-STNMT-QLD with a term of 50 years from 19 August 2016.

Total lease amount for 27,476.9 square meters of land at 01 Pham Hong Thai Street, Ward 02, Tan Binh
District, Ho Chi Minh City, including 2,311.8 square meters of commercial, service, and retail store land
and 712.8 square meters of gas station and fuel supply station land, with rental rates of VND 1,182,104 per
square meter per year and VND 671,933 per square meter per year respectively, according to lease contract
No. 10134/HD-STNMT-QLD signed on 22 October 2018.

Total lease amount for 6,879.5 square meters of land at 592 Cong Hoa Street, Ward 13, Tan Binh District,
Ho Chi Minh City, including 255 square meters of commercial and service land and 6,624.5 square meters
of bus parking lot land, with rental rates of VND 1,544,928 per square meter per year and VND 658,627 per
square meter per year respectively, according to lease contract No. 3743/HD-STNMT-QLD signed on 19
May 2019.

7.2 Information on Contract Dispute Litigation

7.2.1 According to Decision No. 01/2023/QDST-KDTM dated 3 March 2023, of the People's Court of Soc
Son District, Hanoi City, the civil case No. 07/2021/TLST-KDTM dated 15 March 2021, regarding the
dispute over the automobile sales contract, with the Company as the plaintiff, will continue to be resolved.
According to this decision, the Company requests the Court to resolve the following:

- The Company requests the Court, based on Article 34 of the Civil Procedure Code, to cancel the
vehicle registration certificates issued by the Traffic Police Department of Hanoi City Police to GB
Hanoi Co., Ltd., which include the following four vehicles with license plates: 29B.60317; 29B
60514; 29B60611; 29B60539

- The Company requests the Court, based on Article 124, Clause 2 and Article 407 of the Civil Code, to
declare the Mortgage Contract and the Security Transaction Registration Contract invalid for the four
Satraco passenger buses with 47 seats, with license plates: 29B.60317; 29B 60514; 29B60611; 29B60539.
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7.2 Information on Contract Dispute Litigation (continued)

- "Declare the termination of Automobile Sales Contract No. 751/HPMB-SGB-GB-2015 signed on May 11,
2015, and the Contract Addendum signed on 9 March 2016, between Saigon Passenger Car Joint Stock
Company and GB Hanoi Co., Ltd., for four Satraco passenger buses with 47 seats with chassis numbers:
246AG000041, 246AG000042, 246AG000043, 246AG000044 due to the parties not completing payment and
asset handover.

- Recognize the ownership rights of four Satraco passenger buses with 47 seats with chassis numbers:
246AG000041, 246AG000042, 246AG000043, 246AG000044 belonging to Saigon Passenger Car Joint
Stock Company, and Saigon Passenger Car Joint Stock Company continues to exercise ownership rights in
accordance with the law.

- On July 1, 2024, the Company received a summons from the Judge of the People's Court of Soc Son
district to resolve the case task. On September 30, 2024, the Compensation Expense Advance Entrustment
Company reviewed, appraised and valued assets and verified the address of the Soc Son Ethnic Court.

As of the date of the financial statements, the Court is in the process of accepting the case file, and the
Company has not received the final judgment from the Court. Therefore, the Company has not recorded
any (potential) impact on event mentioned above in the financial statements for the fiscal year ending 31
December 2024.

7.2.2 As of 20 November 2023, the People's Court of Thu Duc City has accepted the case file No.
472/2023/TLST-KDTM between the Company and Vietnam Petroleum Safety Joint Stock Company
related to Business Cooperation Contract No. 405/ XKDG-PVS signed on March 26, 2018, with the
Company as the plaintiff. According to this decision, the Company requests the Court to resolve the
following:

- The Company requests the Court to resolve the rights and obligations between the Company and Vietnam
Petroleum Safety Joint Stock Company according to Business Cooperation Contract No. 405/XKDG-PVS
signed on 26 March 2018.

- The Company requests the Court to resolve the rights and obligations related to the outstanding debts
recorded by the Company as of 15 March 2023, with Vietnam Petroleum Safety Joint Stock Company as
follows: Accounts payable to suppliers amounting to VND 837,114,162; advance payments from
customers amounting to VND 1,058,621,080; and long-term deposits amounting to VND 500,000,000.

As of the date of the financial statements, the Court is in the process of accepting the case file, and the
Company has not received the final judgment from the Court. Therefore, the Company has not recorded
any (potential) impact on Vietnam Petroleum Safety Joint Stock Company in the financial statements for
the fiscal year ending 31 December 2024.

7.3 Information of related parties

In the year, the Company has transactions with related parties as follows:

List of related parties

Object Relationship
Saigon Transportation Mechanical Corporation - One Member Limited

Liability Company (SAMCO) Blockhaldes
Tan Thanh Do Group Joint Stock Company Blockholder
Mr. Pham Anh Hung Blockholder
Mr. Nguyen Van Thanh Blockholder
Companies and Branches with Common Blockholders g:::k;?] Il’::ron

Members of the Board of Managements, Supervisors, Board of General Directors, Other

managers and individuals close to the families of these members Significant influence
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7.3 Information of related parties (Continued)

Remuneration for Board of Management

Year 2024 Year 2023
Related parties Position VND VND
Ms. Le Thi My Hanh Chairman 176,000,000 96,000,000
Mr. Tran Ngoc Dan Member 132,000,000 72,000,000
Mr. Pham Hoang Hiep Member 192,000,000 72,000,000
Mr. Tran Long Member 132,000,000 72,000,000
Mr. Tran Lam Member 132,000,000 72,000,000
Mr. Nguyen Tuan Viet Member 132,000,000 72,000,000
Mr. Nguyen Ho Minh Member 132,000,000 72,000,000
Ms. Tran Thi Kim Hoa Secretary of the Board of Directors 99,800,000 60,000,000
Ms. Doan Thi Giao Thuyet Administration in charge 75,800,000 27,000,000
Total 1,203,600,000 615,000,000
Remuneration for Board of Supervisors
Year 2024 Year 2023
Related parties Position VND VND
Mr. Nguyen Quoc Soan Head of the Board 370,000,000 300,000,000
Ms, Tran Thi Ngoc Dung Former Member 20,000,000 60,000,000
Ms. Vu Thi Hong Cam Former Member 20,000,000 60,000,000
Ms. Nguyen Thi To Nhu Member 70,000,000 -
Ms. Tran Kim Tuyen Member 70,000,000 -
Total 550,000,000 420,000,000
Remuneration for Board of General Directors and others
Year 2024 Year 2023
Related parties Position VND VIND
Mr. Pham Hoang Hiep General Director 948,500,000 771,500,000
Mr. Nguyen Tuan Viet Deputy General Director 731,000,000 631,500,000
Mr. Nguyen Ho Minh Deputy General Director 731,000,000 631,500,000
Mr. Nim Vuon Phu Deputy General Director 731,000,000 631,500,000
Mr. Bui Duc Tho Former Deputy General Director - 270,500,000
Ms. Doan Thi Giao Thuyet fl:::; :cco“ma“t’ Adainiseation.n 658,500,000 561,500,000
Total 3,800,000,000  3,498,000,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

7.4 Comparative figures

Comparative figures on the balance sheet and related notes are taken from the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2023 which are audited by CPA VIETNAM Auditing Company Limited - A
Member of INPACT.

In 2024, the Company's Executive and Management Board decided to adjust certain indicators in the
financial statements for the fiscal year ending 31 December 2023, by reclassifying land lease payments that
were being tracked under the 'Taxes and Payables to the State' indicator to the 'Payable Expenses' indicator
as follows:

Balance as at 31 Balance as at 01
December 2023 January 2024
(Presented) (Re-stated) Differences
ITEMS Code VND VND VND
Assets
Toand b b iam 153 1,036,537,167 1,913,657,578 . . 877,120,411
government budget .
Total Change in Assets 877,120,411
Liabilities
Tanes i etherpuynbles 313 20,041,806,971 4,247,240,838  (15,794,566,133)
to government budget
Short-term accrued expenses 315 5,072,984,676 21,744,671,220 16,671,686,544
Total Change in Capital 877,120,411
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SAIGON PASSENGER TRANSPORT
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Ho Chi Minh City, date #2. month March year 2025
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